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LLC 
Certified Public Accouotints ' fiusiticss Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Membei-s of the Town Council, 
Town ofl^ivonia, Louisiana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA (TOWN) as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2018, and the relaied notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Maiiagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in tlie United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements arc fi-ee from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'judgment, including the assessment of 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, tlie auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no sucli opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentalion of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the rmancial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund 
of the Town as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in tlie United Stales of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison and other information on pages 3 through 11 and Exhibits 
B through B-4 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Wc iiavc applied certain limited procedures to the 
required siippleinontary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on tlie financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The supplementary information in Exhibit C is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The supplementary information in Exhibit C is the responsibility of management and was derived fi'om and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such informaliou directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information in Exhibit 
C is fairly .stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, wc have also issued our report dated May 31, 2019 on 
our consideration of tlie TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA'S internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, conti-acts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering tlie Town's internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

fauli / 
Certified Public Accountants 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
May 31,2019 



TOWN OK LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our analysis of The Town of Livonia's (Town) financial performance provides an overview 
of the Town's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2018. The Management's 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's activities, 
resulting changes, and currently known facts. This MD&A should be read in conjunction 
with the financial statements which begin on Exhibit A. 

FINANCIAL fflGHLIGHTS 

In 2018, the Town of Livonia experienced an increase in governmental revenues by 10% 
relative to the prior year, while governmental expenses increased by 13% from the prior year. 
The utility fund revenues increased 2% from the prior year due to a slight increase in 
consumption from the Town's residents. 

The major financial highlights for 2018 are as follows: 

Government-wide flnancia! statements 

• Assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town's primary government exceeded 
its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the year by $4.3 million 
(net position). Of this amount, $667,000 (unrestricted net position) may be used without 
restrictions to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to cilixens. 

• The primary government's total net position decreased by $380,000 during 2018. 

• Governmental activities' net position decreased by $244,000. 

• Business-type activities' net position decrea.scd by $136,000. 

General Fund financial statements 

• As of the end of the year, governmental funds reported a fund balance of $1.5 million, a 
decrease of $100,000 in comparison to the prior year. Approximately 80% of the fund 
balance ($1.2 million) is assigned for purposes relating to recreation, municipal complex 
construction, and general governmental operations. 

Significant aspects of the Town's financial well being, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, are detailed throughout this analysis. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

The Town's financial statements focus on die government as a whole and on major individual 
funds. Both government'-wide and fund perspectives allow the reader to address relevant 
questions, broaden a basis for comparLson from year to year, and enhance the Town's 
accountability. 



This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position 
and the Statement of Activities (on pages 12 and 13) provide information about the activities 
of the Town as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Town's finances. 

Fund financial statements start on page 14. For governmental activities, these statements 
depict how services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future 
spending. Fund financial statements also report the Town's operations in more detail than 
the government-wide statements by providing information about the Town's most significant 
funds. 

The Town's auditor has provided assurance in their independent auditors' report, located 
immediately preceding this MD&A, that the financial statements are fairly presented in all 
material respects. Varying degrees of assurance are being provided by the auditor regarding 
the Required Supplementary Information. A user of this report should read the independent 
auditors' report carefully to ascertain tlie level of assurance being provided for each part of 
this report. 

Reporting on the Town as a Whole 

The financial statements of the Town as a whole begin on page 12. 'Die Statement of Net 
Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and its 
activities in a way to determine if the Town is in better condition, compared to the prior year. 
These statements include all assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to 
accounting methods used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's 
revenues and expenses are reported regardless of when cash is received or paid. Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in Uiese statements for some items that will only result, in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

These two statements report the Town's net position and related changes. The Town's 
financial health, or financial position, can be measured by its net position—the difference 
between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources. Over lime, increases or decreases in the Town's net position are one indicator of 
whether its financial health Is improving or deteriorating. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the Town's operations are 
divided into two kinds of activities: 

Governmental activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, including 
public safely, highway and streets, culture and recreation, and general administration. 
Property and sales taxes, franchise tees and fines finance most of these activities. 

Business-type activities - The Town charges a fee to customers to fund the cost of the gas, 
water, and sewer services it provides. 

At December 31, 2018, the Town's net position was $4.3 million, of which $667,000 is 
unrc.stricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from 
legislation that limits the Town's ability to use that net position for day-to-day operations. 



The analysis of Ihc primary government focuses on the net position and change in net 
position of the Town's governmental activities and business-type activities is as follows: 

Town of Livonia, Louisiana 
Statements of Net Position 

December 31,2018 and 2017 
(in thousands) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total Primary 
Government 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Current and other assets $ 1,554 $ 1,648 $ 473 $ 519 $ 2,027 $ 2,167 
Capital assets 1,446 1,512 4,818 5,077 6,264 6,589 

Total assets 3,000 3,160 5,291 5,596 8,291 8,756 
Deferred outflows 

of resources 330 226 • _ 330 226 
Total assets & deferred 

outflows of resources $ 3,330 s 3,386 $ 5,291 $ 5,596 $ 8,621 $ 8,982 

Current and other liabilities $ 84 $ 78 $ 133 $ 118 $ 217 $ 196 
Long-term liabilities 1.096 961 2,979 3,163 4.075 4,124 

Total liabilities UlfJO 1,039 3.112 3.281 4.292 4,320 
Deferred inflows 

of resources 58 11 _ 58 11 
Net position: 

Net investment in 
capital assets 1,446 1,512 1,838 1,914 3,284 3,426 

Restricted - - 320 329 320 329 
Unrestricted 646 824 21 72 667 896 

Total net position 2.092 2.336 2.179 2.315 4.271 4.651 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows 

of resources, and net position $ 3,330 $ 3,386 $ 5.291 $ 5,596 $ 8,621 $ 8,982 

Net position of the Town's governmental activities decreased by 10% or $244,000 during 
2018. Unrcstricted net position represents the part of net position that can be used to finance 
day-to-day operations witliout constraints established by legislation or oilier legal 
requirements. The $646,000 in unrestricted net position of governmental activities represents 
the cumulative results of operations since the Town's inception. 

The changes in net position are discussed later in lliis analysis. The not position of the 
Town's business activities decreased by 6% or $136,000 during 2018. The Town operates 
gas, water, and sewer services tor its citizens. 



The results of 2018 and 2017 operations for the primaiy government as reported in the 
Statement of Activities, are as follows: 

Town of Livonia 
Statements of Activities 

For the years ended December 31,2018 and 2017 
(in thousands) 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

Revenues: 

Program: 
Charges for services $ 813 $ 640 $ 543 $ 552 $ 1,356 $ 1,192 
Operating grants 41 40 - 41 40 
Capital grants - 19 45 - 45 19 

General: 
Sales taxes 300 313 - - 300 313 
Video poker taxes 120 115 - - 120 115 
Franchise taxes 72 71 - - 72 71 
Ad vabrem taxes 46 44 - - 46 44 
Other 70 91 2 9 72 100 

Total revenues 1,462 1,333 590 561 2,052 1,894 

Functions/1^ rogram Expenses: 
General government 209 200 - - 209 200 
Public safety 1,090 894 - - 1,090 894 
Higliway and streets 200 235 - - 200 235 
Healtli and welfare 1 3 - - 1 3 
Culture and recreation 81 63 - - 81 63 
Utility operations - - 851 836 851 836 

Total expenses 1,581 1,395 851 836 2,432 2,231 

Changes in net position 
before transfers (119) (62) (261) (275) (380) (337) 

Transfers (125) (159) 125 159 - -

Change in net position (244) (221) (136) (116) (380) (337) 

Beginning net position 2,336 2,557 2,315 2,431 4,651 4,988 

Ending net position $ 2,092 $ 2,336 
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FiituI hiiiancial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of governmental 
financial statements will find the fund financial statement presentation more familiar. The 
focus is on major funds, rather than generic fund types. 

Reporting the Town's Most Significant Funds 

The analysis ofthe Town's major funds begins on page 14 with the fund financial statements 
tlial provide detailed information about the most significant funds—not the 'I own as a whole. 
Some funds are required to be eslabiishccl by State law or by bond covenants. However, the 
Town Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes 
or meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The Town's 
two kinds of funds—governmental and proprietary—use different accounting approaches. 

Governmental funds—Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as 
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Most of the Town's 
basic services are reported in governmental funds. These funds are reported using an 
accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other 
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements 
provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's general govemment operations and the 
basic seivices it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are 
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the Town's 
programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and the governmental fund, the 
General Fund, is described in a reconciliation to the financial statements. The governmental 
major fund (Exhibits A-2 and A-4) presentation is presented using modified accrual basis and 
focuses on the major funds of the Town. The Town's only governmental fund is the General 
Fund. 

Proprietary funds—When the Town charges customers for the seivices it provides— 
whether to outside customers or to other units of the Town—these services are generally 
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all 
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In 
fact, the Town's enterprise fund (Public Utility Fund) is the same as the business-type 
activities reported in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional 
information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. 

Notes to the financial statements—The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund 
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are a required part of the basic 
financial statements and can be found in Exhibit A-9. 



Other information—Jn addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, 
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning original and 
final budgetary comparisons to actual results for the year for the Town's budgetary funds. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

The general government operations of the Town are accounted for in the General Fund. The 
focus of this fund, as noted earlier, is to provide infonnaticn on near-term inflows, outflows 
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's 
financing requirements. The following is a summary of general governmental operations for 
2018 and 2017: 

General Fund 
2018 2017 

(in thousands) 

Revenues and other financing sources $ 1,436 $ 1,358 

Expenditures and other financing uses 1,536 1,631 

Net change in fund balance (100) (273) 

Fund balance - beginning 1,570 1,843 

Fund balance - ending $ 1,470 $ 1,570 

The Town's General Fund experienced a decrease in fund balance of $100,000 during 2018 
that primarily resulted from increases personnel costs related to public safety compared to the 
prior year. At year end, the fund's balance was $1.5 million, of which $291,000 was 
unassigned and available for utilization at the Town's discretion. 

Governmental revenues, excluding other financing sources, are summarized below: 

2018 2017 

(In thousands) 

Fines $ 712 50% $ 540 43% 
Taxes 541 38% 546 44% 
Licenses and permits 79 6% 84 7% 
Intergovernmental 41 3% 40 3% 
Other 50 3% 32 3% 

Total $ 1,423 100% $ 1,242 100% 

Revenues of the General Fund for 2018 totaled approximately SI.4 million, representing an 
increase of 15% from the previous year. 



As noted on the previous page, the Town's activities are largely supported by fines and taxes, 
wliich represented 88% of total governmental resources during 2018. 

Expenditures of the primary government decreased by $1,000 or less than 1% in 2018, 
primarily related to a decrease in highways and streets and capital outlay expenditures. In 
addition, public safely expenditures increased by $112,000 or 8% compared to the prior year. 
Gcvernmentai expenditure.s by functions are summarized as follows: 

2018 2017 

(In thousands) 

Function 

General government $ 196 14% $ 185 13% 
Public safety 931 66% 819 58% 
Highways and streets 176 12% 213 15% 

Culture and recreation 37 3% 19 1% 

Health and welfare 1 0% 3 1% 

Capital outlay 71 4% 174 12% 

Total $ 1,412 100% $ 1,413 100% 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Over the course of the year, the Town's General Fund budget was amended which is a 
customary practice of the Town for changes that occur with financial matters. The most 
significant changes during 2018 were as follows: 

• A decrease in intergovernmental rcvenues of $146,000, 
• An increase In fines revenue of $124,000, 
• A decrease in capital outlay expenditures of $190,000, 
• A decrease in general government expenditures of $9,000. 

With these adjustments, revenues were $3,000 less than the related final budget amounts of 
$1.4 million, and charges to appropriations (expenditures) were $13,000 less than the related 
final budget appropriation of $1.4 million. 



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Aiisets 

At the end of 2018, the Town had $6.3 million invested in a broad range of capita! assets, 
including vehicles, computer equipment, office furniture, land, buildings, water and gas 
distribution systems, and a sewer treatment facility. 

Capital assets, net 
of depreciation 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Totals 

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

(in thousands") 

Land $ 131 S 131 $ 36 $ 36 $ 167 $ 167 
ConslTuction in process 10 6 - - 10 6 
Buildings 514 537 63 63 577 600 
Infrastructure 468 484 - - 468 484 
Furniture and equipment 150 179 142 153 292 332 
Vehicles 100 92 5 9 105 101 
Tractors 73 83 - - 73 83 
Utility systems - - 4,572 4,816 4,572 4,816 

$ 1,446 $ 1,512 $ 4,818 $ 5,077 $ 6,264 $ 6,589 

The Town elected to capitalize infrastructure assets on a prospective basis as a Phase 3 
government, which is permitted by GASH No. 34. More detailed information about the 
Town's capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements. 

Debt 

At the end of 2018, the Town had $4.1 million in debt outstanding related lo the sewer 
construction project and net pension liability. This represents a decrease of $49,000 from 
2017, as shown below: 

Public improvement 
revenue bonds 

Net pension liabilitiy 

Balance 
Beginning 
of Year Additions Reductions 

Balance 
End of 
Year 

Anount due 
within 

one year 

$ 3,163,151 $ - $ 184,000 $ 2,979,151 $ 186,000 
961,272 252,512 117,563 1,096,221 -

$ 4,124,423 $ 252,512 $ 301,563 $ 4,075,372 $ 186,000 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS 

The Town's elected and appointed oiricials considered many factors when setting the 2019 
budget and tax rates. One of those factors is the local economy, with the major economic 
industries in the surrounding area being agriculture and manufacturing. 

An important factor affecting the budget is the Town's fines and forfeitures revenue that 
approximate 62% of budgeted revenue in the General Fund. The Town budgeted an increase 
in revenue of $136,000 in the General Fund compared to results for the cun'cnt year. The 
increase relates to revenue to be received from state grants. Additionally, the Town is 
projecting an increase in expenditures of $126,000 compared to the current year relating to 
scheduled capital outlay expenditures in the General Fund. If these estimates are realized 
during 2019, the Town's General Fund fund balance will decrease by $368,000, as compared 
to a decrease of $82,000 during 2018. 

Contacting the Town's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show accountability for the 
money the Town receives. Questions about this report or a need for additional financial 
information should be directed to the Town's Finance Office at (225) 637-2981 or P.O. Box 
307, Livonia, LA 70755. 

n 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

ExhibitA 

December 31, 2018 

Primai'y Covci nment 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,447,702 $ 40,595 s 1,488,297 
Accounts receivable, net 48,905 61,937 110,842 
Internal balances 25,000 (25,000) -
Due from other governments 23,926 1,762 25,688 
Prepaid assets 8,994 445 9,439 
Restricted assets: 

Customer utility deposits - 74,530 74,530 
Debt service - 319,087 319,087 

Capital assets: 
Nondepreciable 140,870 36,073 176.943 
Depreciable, net 1,305,151 4,781,518 6,036,669 

Total assets 3,000,548 5,290,947 8,291,495 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension liability 330,068 - 330,068 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 3.330,616 S 5,290.947 £ 8,621,563 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilHies $ 64,503 $ 58,501 £ 123,004 
Due to other governrnents 19,696 - 19,696 
Customer utility deposits 74,530 74,530 
Long-tenn payables: 

Due within one year - 186,000 186,000 
Due in more than one year - 2,793,151 2,793,151 
Net pension liability 1,096,221 - 1,096.221 

Total liabilities 1,180,420 3.112.182 4,292,602 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Pension liability 58,179 - 58,179 

Total liabilities and defeited inflows ofresoui'ces 1,238,599 3,112,182 4,350,781 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 1,446,021 1,838,440 3,284,461 
Restricted for debt service - 319,087 319,087 
Unrestricted 645,996 21,238 667,234 

Total net position 2,092,017 2,178,765 4,270,782 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position $ 3,330,616 $ 5,290,947 $ 8,621,563 

Moles on Exhibit A-9 are aji integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVi riES 

Exhibit A-1 

Tor ihc year ended December 31.201S 

Program Revenues 
Net Revenue (Expenses) nnd 

Changes iii Net PosHion 

Expeaiea 

Fiiiicdons/Pi'ograms 
Primary government: 
CovemmuKul uclivitics: 

Gcncial guvertunont S 209,055 
Public safety 1,089,773 
Highway and streets 200,010 
Health and welfare 259 
Cultiuc and recreation 81.394 

Total governmental activities 1,580,49] 

Business-type activities: 
Utility operations 850.923 

Total primary government 

Qiai'ges for 
Services 

$ 93.093 
711,683 

Operating 
Grants and 

Conlribnlions Conirlbulloiis 

Capital 
Grants and GoverDmentai Business-Type 

Activities Activities 

. s 
40,983 

• S 

255 
7.675 

(i 15,962} S 
(337.107) 
(200,010) 

(4) 
(73.719) _ 

- s 

812.706 

542.741 

40,983 (726,802) 

45.000 

S 2.431.414 S i .355.447 ^ 40.983 $_ 45,000 (726.802) 

Goiorat revenues; 
Taxes; 

(263.182) 

(263.182) 

Total 

(115,962) 
(337,107) 
(200.010) 

(4) 
(73.719) 

(726,802) 

(263.182) 

(989.984) 

Sales 300,270 300.270 
Video poker 119,704 119,704 
Franchise 72.160 72,160 
Ad valorem 45.915 45,915 
Beer 3.345 3.345 

Grants and contributions not rosiricted to specific programs 25.588 25,588 
Investment earnings 27,528 27,528 
Coin on disposal of capital assets 13,510 2,500 16,010 
Transfers (124.844) 124.844 -

Total general revenues 483.176 127 J44 610.520 

Change in net position (243,626) (135,838) (379.464) 

Net position - beginning ofyear 2J35.643 2.314.603 4.650.246 

Net position - end ofyear $ 2.092.017 S 2.178.765 $ 4,270.782 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-2 

TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

December 31j 2018 

General 
Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,447,702 
Accounts receivable 48,905 
Due from Utility Fund 25.000 
Due from other governments 23,926 
Prepaid assets 8,994 

Total assets $ 1.554,527 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 64,503 
Due to other governments 19,696 

Total liabilities 84,199 

FUND BALANCE 
Assigned 1,179,197 
Unassigned 291.131 

Total fund balance 1,470,328 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,554,527 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
14 



Exhibit A-3 

TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVEIWMENTAL FUND 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31,2018 

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position is different because; 

Total fund balance - governmental fund (Exhibit A-2) $ 1,470,328 

Capital assets used in governmental activities that are not financial 
resources and, therefore, arc not reported in the govemmental fund, 
net of accumulated depreciation. 1,446,021 

Pension related obligations are not due and payable with current 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in govemmental funds. 

Deferred outflows related to pension liability 330,068 
Deferred inflows related to pension liability (58,179) 
Net pension liability (1,096,221) (824,332) 

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A) $ 2,092,017 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

Exhibit A-4 

For the year ended December 31,2018 

CenerHl 
Fund 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Sales and use $ 300,270 
Video poker 119,704 
Franchise 72,160 

Ad valorem 45,915 
Beer 3,345 

Fines 711,683 
License and permits 78,565 
Intergovernmental 40,983 
Charges for services 22,458 
Investment income 27,528 

Total revenues 1,422,611 

EXPENDITURES 
Current function: 

General government 196,500 
Public safety 931,020 
Highways and streets 175,646 
Health and welfare 259 
Culture and recreation 36,751 

Capital outlay 71.280 

Total expenditures 1,411,456 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 11,155 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Proceeds from .sale of capital assets 13,618 

Transfers out (124,844) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (111,226) 

Net change in fund balance (100,071) 

FUND BAI.ANCE 
Beginning of year 1,570,399 

End of year $ 1,470,328 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 ai'e an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-5 

TOWN OK LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENOn URES, AM) 
CHANGES IN FUND HALANCE OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO 

THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the year ended December 31,2018 

The change In net position reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities is dilTerent because: 

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds (Exhibit A-4) 

The governmental fund reports capital outlay as expenditures. However, in 
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation. 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

S (100,071) 

71,280 
(13M46) (65,166) 

Disposal of capital assets which were not fully depreciated resulted in a decrease 
of net assets 

Changes in net pension obligations are reported only in the Statement of Activities 

(108) 

(78,281) 

Change in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A-1) £ (243,626) 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

December 31, 2018 

Exhibit A-6 

ASSETS 
Cun-ent assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net 
Due from other governments 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Restricted assets: 
Customer utility deposits 
Debt service 

Capital assets: 
Nondepreciable 
Depreciable, net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Due to General Fund 
Customer utility deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

Public 
Utility Fund 

$ 40,595 
61,937 

1,762 
445 

104,739 

74,530 
319,087 

36,073 
4,781,518 

$ 5,315,947 

58,501 
25,000 
74,530 

158,031 

186,000 
2,793,151 

3,137,182 

1,838,440 
319,087 
21,238 

2,178,765 

$ 5,315,947 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exliibit A-7 

TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

For the year ended December 31,2018 

Public 
Utility Fund 

OPERATINC; REVENUICS 
Charges for services: 

Water $ 190,875 
Natural gas 138,826 
Sewer 174,420 
Other 38,620 

Total operating revenues 542,741 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Depreciation 312,761 
Personnel 228,374 
Maintenance and supplies 112,128 
Natural gas purchases 59,152 
General and administrative 42,191 
Utilities 38,060 
Insurance 28,530 
Professional services 15,907 

Total operating expenses 837,103 

Operating loss (294,362) 

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 2,500 
Interest (13,820) 

Deficiency before capital grants and contributions and transfers (305,682) 

Capital grants and contributions 45,000 
Transfers in 124,844 

Change in net position (135,838) 

NET POSITION 
Beginning of year 2,314,603 

End of year $ 2,178,765 

Moles on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Exhibit A-8 

For the year ended December 31, 2018 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACnVlTIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Transfers in from other funds 
Increase in due to other funds 

Net cash provided by noncapital and related floancirig activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Purchases of capital assets 
Principal payment on bonds 
Interest payments on bonds 
Capital grants and conti'ibutions 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Operating Joss 
Adjustments for to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Change in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable and other assets 
Accounts payable and accmed liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Public 
Utility Fund 

$ 547,644 
(279,201) 
(228,374) 

40,069 

124,844 
25,000 

149,844 

(53,555) 
(184,000) 
(13,820) 
45,000 
2,500 

94 

Net cash used for capital and related frnancing activities (203,781) 

Net decrease in cash (13,868) 

CASH 
Beginning of period 448,080 

End of period S 434,212 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Resti'ictcd cash and cash equivalents 

40,595 
393,617 

Total cash $ 434,212 

$ (294,362) 

312,761 

7,131 
14,539 

40.069 

Notes on Exhibit A-9 are an integral part of this statement. 
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Exhibit A-9 

TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Statement Presentation 

The Town of Livonia was established in 1846, incoiporated in 1960 and is a political 
subdivision of the State of Louisiana. The Town, under the provisions of the Lawrason Act, 
enacts ordinances, sets policy and establishes programs in such fields as public safely, 
public works, health and welfare, culture and recreation, and utility operations. 

The financial statements of the Town of Livonia, Louisiana (Town) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Boai'd (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and 
local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). The most 
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the Town are described 
below. The Town follows GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements ~ and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis ~ for State and Local Governments. Certain 
significant components in the Statement include the following: 

• A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the 
Town's overall financial position and results of operations, 

• Financial statements prepared using accrual basis accounting for all of the Town's 
activities, including infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.), and 

• Fund financial statements to focus on the major funds. 

Reporting Entity 

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Town is considered a 
sepai'ate financial reporting entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary 
municipal government, and where applicable (b) organizations for which the primaiy 
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the natiu*e and 
significance of their relationship with the primaiy government are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 61, established criteria for 
determining which component units should be considered part of the Town for financial 
reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the 
reporting entity is financial accountability. 

21 



Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Reporting Entity (Continued) 

The GASB has set foitli criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. 
This criteria includes: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and 

a. The ability of the municipality to impose its will on that organization, and/or 

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or 
impose specific burdens on the municipality. 

2. Organizations for which the municipality docs not appoint a voting majority but are 
fiscally dependent on the municipality. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be 
misleading if data of the organization is not included because of the nature or 
significance of the relationship. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present 
the Town and, where applicable, its component units. However, there are no component 
units to be included either blended within the Town's funds or discretely presented in these 
financial statements. 

Basis of Presentation 

The Town's basic financial statements consist of the govemment-wide statements of the 
primary government and the fund financial statements (individual major funds). The Town's 
financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and applied to governmental units. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities for all non-fiduciary activities of tlic Town. As a general rule, the 
elTect of inlcrfund activity has been removed from these statements. The government-wide 
presentation focuses primarily on the sustainability of the government as an entity and the 
change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. 
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the 
Town. 

Governmental activities generally arc financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, 
fines, charges for services, and other nonexchange revenues. 

Business type activities arc financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties 
for utility services provided. The Town's natural gas, sewer, and water services ai'e 
classified as business-type activities. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Government-wide Financial Statements (Continued) 

The goveniment-wide stalcincnt of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct 
expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are 
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from 
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or business-type activity, and (2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among progi*am 
revenues arc reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements arc very similar to the traditional government fund statements 
as prepared by govcrmnents prior to the issuance of GASB No. 34. Emphasis is now on the 
major funds in either the governmental or business-type categories. Non-major funds (by 
category) or fund type are summarized into a single column in the basic financial 
statements. The Town does not have any non-major funds in 2018. 

The daily operations of the 'lown continue to be organized on the basis of funds, each of 
which i.s considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted 
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, equity, 
revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Funds are organized into tliree 
major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciaiy. The Town does not have any 
fiduciary funds. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and 
proprietary categories. 

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Town (the General 
Fund) or meets the following criteria: 

• Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and defen'cd inflows of 
resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental fund or 
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of tlie corresponding total for all funds of that 
categoiy or type; and 

• Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental lund or 
enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the con*esponding total for all governmental and 
enterprise funds combined. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the 
purpose for which they arc to be expended and the means by which spending activities are 
controlled. The vai-ious funds of the primary governinent presented in the financial 
statements are described as follows: 

Governmental Fund Types 

Governmental funds are those thi'ough which most governmental functions of the Town are 
financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of expendable financial resources and related 
liabilities of the Town are accounted for tluough governmental funds. Measurement is 
focused upon determining changes in financial position, rather than net income. 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the 'fown. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except tliose required to be accounted for in another fund. 
The General Fund is always a major fund. 

Proprietary Fund Types 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (1) that are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the 
governing body is that the costs and expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
thi'ough u.ser charges; or (2) where the governing body has decided that periodic 
dctcnnination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or changes in net position is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or 
other purposes. Proprietary fiinds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items. 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection 
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise 
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of 
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. The Town considers the Public Utilities Fund a major 
enterprise fund. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
the related cash flows. Property taxes arc recognized in the year for which tliey are levied. 
Program revenues for governmental activities include operating and capital grants, traffic 
fines, and occupational licenses and permits. 

Fundfinancial statements 

All governmental funds arc accounted for using a current financial resources measurement 
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and cun-ent liabilities are generally 
included in the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases 
(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other uses) in fund 
balance. Governmental funds are maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Governmental fund revenues resulting from exchange transactions are recognized in tlic 
fiscal year in which the exchange takes place and meets the government's availability 
criteria (susceptible to accrual). "Available" means collectible within the cun-ent period or 
within 60 days afier year-end. Charges for services, fines and forfeitures, and most 
governmental revenues, are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available. 

Noncxchange transactions, in which the Town receives value without directly giving value 
in return, includes sales tax, ad valorem tax, and federal and state grants. Ad valorem taxes 
are recorded in the year the taxes are assessed. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar 
year basis, become due on November 15th of each year, and become delinquent after 
December 31.st. The taxes are generally collected in December of the current year and 
January and February of the following year. 

Sales taxes are recorded when in the possession of the iniermediaiy collecting agent and are 
recognized as revenue at that time and are subject to the availability criteria. Federal and 
state grants are recorded as revenue when the Town is entitled to tlic funds, generally 
corresponding to when grant related costs are incurred by the Town, but subject to the 
availability criteria. 

Expenditures arc recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is 
incurred, if measurable, except for (I) unmalui'ed interest on general long-term debt which 
Is recognized when due, and (2) claims and judgments, and compensated absences which 
are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund type when paid with expendable 
financial resources. Allocations of costs such as depreciation and amortization are not 
recognized in the govenimental funds. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE J - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 

Fund financial statements (Continued) 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 
focus. Proprictaiy funds are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting whereas revenues 
are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable, 
and expenses arc recognized in the period incuiTed, if measurable. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the Town include the Louisiana Asset Management Pool 
(LAMP) account deposits as well as the Town's operating cash accounts. 

The investment policy of the Town is governed by state statutes that include depositoiy and 
custodial contract provisions. The Town invests funds in accordance with L.R.S. 39:1211-
1245 and 33:2955 which include, but are not limited to, United States Treasury Bonds, 
Treasury Notes, Treasury Bills, and fully collateralized interest bearing checking accounts 
and certificates of deposit. Other provisions require depositories to insure or collateralize all 
deposits in accordance with state law and require securities collateraljzing deposits to be 
held by an independent third pm*ty with whom the Town has a custodial agreement. The 
Town priinaidly utilizes the LAMP to invest idle funds, 

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, liquid investments of the enterprise fund with 
a matuj-ity of thi*ee months or less are considered to be cash equivalents. 

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounlmg principles. The hierarchy is based on the 
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices 
in active markets for Identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. See Note 2. 

Accounts Receivable 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at ycar-cnd 
and not yet received. For govemmentai activities uncollectible amounts due for receivables 
are recognized as bad debts and directly charged olT at the time information becomes 
available which indicates that the particular receivable is not collectible and the 
uncollectible amount is charged to tlie revenue reported. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFrCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Accounts Receivable (Continued) 

In business-type activities, uncollectible amounts due from utility billing receivables are 
recognized as bad debts thi'ough the use of an allowance account or are directly charged off 
at the time information becomes available which indicates that the particular receivable is 
not collectible. An allowance for doubtful accounts of $12,000 was recorded at December 
31,2018. 

Interfund Receivablcs/Payablcs 

During the course of operations, transactions may occur between individual funds. Those 
related to short-term borrowings are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other 
funds" on the balance sheet. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within 
governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide fmancial statements as "internal balances." The Public 
Utility Fund owed the General Fund $25,000 at December 31,2018. 

Capital Assets 

The accounting treatment of property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on 
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations 
and whether Ihcy are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide Statements 

In the goveminenl-wide financial statements, all capital assets are valued at historical cost 
or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets which 
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Major capital outlays for 
capital assets and improvements are capitalized at the completion of construction projects. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend asset lives are expensed. Major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements ai'e capitalized at completion of construction projects. 

l^rior to the implementation of GASB No. 34, govenimental fiind's infrastructure assets 
were not capitalized. The Town has elected to capitalize infiastructure expenditures on a 
prospective basis. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Capital Assets (Continued) 

Government-mde Statements (Continued) 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net 
Position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as 
follows: 

Buildings and improvements 7-40 years 
Infrastructure 15-40 years 
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years 
Vehicles 5-10 years 
Tractors 5-10 years 

Fund Financiai Statements 

In the fund financial statements capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 
recorded as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund types when purchased. 
Capital assets used in proprietaiy fund operations are accounted for in the same manner as 
in government-wide statements. 

Property, plant and equipment used by the proprietaiy funds are stated at cost. Interest costs 
incurred during construction periods are capitalized. Depreciation has been provided over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method. The estimated useful 
lives are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 7-40 years 
Utility systems 5-50 years 
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years 
Furniture and equipment 10 years 
Vehicles 5 years 

Compensated Absences 

The Town has the following policy relating to vacation and sick leave: 

Length of Service Annual Earned Houi-lv Allowance 
Less than 1 year 80 

1 - 4 years 160 
5-8 years 200 
9-14 years 240 
15+years 280 

An employee may not cairy over more than 264 hours of vacation from one calendai- year to 
another. A liability lias been accrued in the financial .statements for compensated absences. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Govcrnmcnl-widc and Proprietary Fund Net Position 

Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components: 

• Net investment in capital assets - consist of the historical cost of capital assets less 
accumulated depreciation and related debt that was used to acquire those assets. 

• Restricted net position - consist of net position that is restricted by the Town's 
creditors (for example, tlu'ough debt covenants), by tlie stale enabling legislation 
(through restrictions on shared revenues), by grantors (both federal and state), and by 
other contributors. 

• Uru'cstricted - all other net position is reported in this category. 

Governmentai Fund Balances 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows; 

• Nonspendablc - amounts that cannot be spent because they arc either in a nonspendable 
fonn or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

• Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the Town 
Code, state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors. 

• Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
fonnal action by Town council ordinance. 

• Assigned - amounts that are designated by the Mayor for a particular purpose but are 
not spendable until a budget ordinance is passed or there is a majority vote approval 
(for capital projects or debt service) by Town Council. 

• Unassigned - all amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

Use of Restricted Resources 

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted 
resources (fund balance), the Town's policy is to apply the expenditure in the following 
priority: 

1. Restricted fimd balance, 
2. Committed fund balance, 
3. Assigned fund balance, and 
4. Unassigned fund balance. 

When an expense is incurred in government activities that can be paid using either 
restricted or uni'cstricted resources (net position), the Town's policy is to first apply the 
expense to the restricted net position before unrestricted net position is utilized. 
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Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI.ICIES (CONTINUED) 

Intcrfuiid Transfers 

Advances between funds which are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as transfers. 

In cases where repayment is expected, the advances arc accounted through the various 
interfund accounts. The General Fund transferred $124,844 to the Utility Fund. 

Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting 

A proposed budget is prepared and submitted to the Mayor and Town Council prior to tlie 
beginning of each fiscal year. A budget summaiy and notice of a public hearing is published 
with the public liearing being conducted prior to the coinmencemenL of the budget year. 

The annual operating budget, prepared on tlie modified accrual basis, covers the General 
Fund and Public Utility Fund. At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations 
automatically lapse. Budget amendments are approved by tlie Town Council and are 
included in the Financial statements. 

In connection with budget preparation, a portion of the unassigned fund balance of an 
individual fund may be designated for expenditures of the subsequent year. Such 
designation represents the extent to which the fund balance is used to balance the 
subsequent year's operating budget of that fund, as reflected in the legally adopted budget. 

Sales and Use Tax 

The Town has a permanent one cent sales and use tax that is available for general purposes. 

Estimates 

The prepai'ation of financial statements in confonnily with generally accepted accounting 
principles requkes management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at tlie 
date of the financial statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses of proprietary funds and the government-wide financial statements during tlie 
repovling period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates ai'e used 
primarily when accounting for die allowance for uncollectible accountvS and depreciation. 

Subsequent Events 

In preparing these financial statements, the Town has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure tiirough May 31, 2019, which was the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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Exlnbit A-9 
(Continued) 

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Town may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, or certificates of deposit of 
state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national banks having their principal 
office in the State of Louisiana or other qualifying federally insured investments. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the Town's 
deposits may not be returned to them. To mitigate this risk, state law requires public 
deposits to be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of qualified securities 
owned by tlie fiscal agent financial institution. As of December 31, 2018, tlie Town had no 
unsecured deposits. 

As of December 31,2018, the Town had a balance of $ 1,535,732 invested in LAMP, 

LAMP is administered by a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Louisiana. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have 
an investment interest in its pools of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is tO provide a 
safe cnvironinent for tlie placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. 
The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local 
governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA - R.S. 33:2955. 
The value of the portfolio is carried at amortized cost. 

GASB Statement No. 40 Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of 
credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign 
currency risk for all public investments. 

LAMP is an investment pool that, to the extent practical, invest in a manner consistent with 
GASB Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for investment pools: 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

• Custodial risk: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of 
the pool. Investments in pools .should be disclosed, but not categorized because they 
are not evidenced by securities that exist physical or book-cntiy form. The public 
entity's investment is witli the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, 
no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent 
disclosure requirement. 

• Interest rate risk: LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants 
immediate access to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk 
disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP 
assets is restricted to not more than 90 days, and consists of no securities with maturity 
in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. Government floating/variable rale 
investments. 

• Foreign currency risk: Not applicable 
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The investments in LAMP are staled at fair value. The fair value is determined on a weekly 
basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the cxtemaJ investment pool is the same as 
the net asset value of the pool shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of 
directors. LAMP is not registered witli the SEC as an investment company. 

The government's investments are categorized as either (1) insured or registered for which 
the securities are held by the government or its agent in the government's name, (2) 
uninsured and um'egistered for which the securities are held by the broker's or dealer's trust 
department or agent in the government's name, or (3) uninsured and unregistered for which 
securities arc held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent but not in the 
government's name. Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following as of December 
31,2018: 

Unrestricted: 
Investments in LAMP $ 1,355,624 
Deposits 158,655 
Cash on hand 200 

Total unrestricted $ 1,514,479 

Restricted: 
Investments in LAMP $ 180,108 
Deposits 213,509 

Total restricted $ 393,617 

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - ENTERPRISE FUND 

Accounts receivable and related user fees from utility customers were compri.sed largely of 
rcsidents in the Town. Most customers have made deposits to partially secure their 
outstanding balance. In 2018, one commercial customer represented approximately 21% of 
total water revenues for the Town. 

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2018 for the primary government, were as follows; 

Priinaiy Government 
Utility charges, net $ 61,937 
Ad valorem taxes 28,045 
Franchise taxes 14,763 
Other 6,097 

Total primary government $ 110,842 
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND DUE FROM OTUER GOVERNMENTS 
(CONTINUED) 

Due Irom other govennnents at December 31,2018 for the primary government, wore: 

Primary Government 
Video poker tax $ 23,926 
Grants receivable 1,762 

Total primaiy government $ 25,688 

NOTE 5 - AD VALOREM TAXES 

The 1974 Louisiana Constitution (Article 7 Section 18) provided that land and 
improvements for residential puiposes be assessed at 10% of fair market value; other 
properly and electric cooperative properties, excluding land, are to be assessed at 15% of 
fair market value; and public service properties, excluding land, are to be assessed at 25% 
of fair mai'ket value. 

Fair market value is determined by the elected assessor of the parish on all property subject 
to taxation except public service properties, which are valued by the Louisiana Tax 
Commission (LRS 47:1957). The correctness of assessments by the assessor is subject to 
review and certification by the Louisiana Tax Commission. The assessor is required to 
reappraise all property subject to taxation at intervals of not more than four years. 

All ad valorem (property) taxes are recorded in governmental funds, and as explained in 
Note 1, and are recognized in the accounting period in which they become available and 
measurable. Properly taxes are considei'ed measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy. 
Accordingly, the taxes assessed for the calendar year falling within the current fiscal year 
2LVC recorded as revenue. Property taxes are collected by the tax collector and remitted to the 
Town within the availability period, and are therefore available to liquidate liabilities of the 
current period. 

Taxes are levied by the Town in September or October, and are billed to the taxpayers in 
November. Billed taxes become delinquent on December Revenues from ad valorem 
taxes are budgeted in the year assessed. Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on 
property as of January L" of each year. 

For 2018, taxes of 4.83 mills were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling 
$9,506,225 and were dedicated to general governmental operations. Total taxes levied 
were $45,915, with $52,183, iucluding delinquent taxes from prior years, collected during 
2018. 
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summai-y of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2018, is as 
follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

Beginning 
Balance Licreascs Decreases 

Ending 
Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

$ 130,537 
6,026 

$ 
4,307 

$ $ 130,537 
10,333 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 136,563 4,307 140,870 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 787,479 - - 787,479 
Infraslmclurc 827,659 26,116 - 853,775 
Furniture and equipment 571,309 2,776 - 574,085 
Vehicles 240,056 38,081 (30,206) 247,931 
Tractors 266,251 - (35,406) 230,845 

Total capital assets being depreciated 2,692,754 66,973 (65,612) 2,694,115 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 251,306 21,683 - 272,989 
Infrastructure 343.950 42,011 - 385,961 
Furniture and equipment 392,171 32,200 - 424,371 
Vehicles 147,947 30,102 (30,206) 147,843 
Tractors 182,648 10,450 (35,298) 157,800 

Total accumulated depreciation 1,318,022 136,446 (65,504) 1,388,964 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 1,374,732 (69,473) (108) 1,305,151 

Total governmental capital assets, net $ 1,511,295 $ (65,166) $ (108) $ 1,446,021 

Depreciation expense was charged to fiinctions of the Town as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Public safety 
Culture and recreation 
Highways and streets 
General govermncnt 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Amount 

54,884 
44,643 
24,364 
12,555 

$ 136.446 
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Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Exhibit A-9 
(Continued) 

Ending 
Balance 

Busiiicss-type activities: 
Capital assets not being (lc]>rcciatcd: 
Land $ 36,073 $ - $ - $ 36,073 

Capilai assets not being depreciated; 36,073 - > 36,073 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings and improvements 114,490 2,630 - 117,120 
Natural gas system 260,476 - - 260,476 
Water system 1.868,035 43,440 - 1,911,475 
Sewer system 5,069,259 - - 5,069,259 
Machinery and equipment 294,508 7,485 (16,500) 285,493 
Fumiture and equipment 14.471 - - 14,471 
Vehicles 76,489 - - 76,489 

Capital assets being depreciated: 7,697.728 53.555 (16.500) 7,734.783 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 50,649 3,777 - 54,426 
Natural gas system 195,393 6,961 202,354 
Water system 1,314,066 75,688 - 1,389,754 
Sewer system 873,611 203,429 - 1,077,040 
Machinery and equipment 145,479 16,001 (16,500) 144,980 
Fumiture and equipment 13,204 421 - 13,625 
Vehicles 64,602 6.484 - 71.086 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 

Total business-type capital assets, net 

2,657,004 

5,040,724 

312,761 

(259,206) 

(16,500) 2,953,265 

4,781,518 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets 
being depreciated, net 

Total business-type capital assets, net $ 5.076,797 $ (259,206) $ - $ 4,817,591 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Long-tenii debt obligations for the primary goveimment at December 31, 2018, are 
comprised of the following: 

Public Improvement Revenue Bonds - business type activities 

$3,696,000 Sewer revenue bonds dated November 
1, 2012; due in annual installments of $184,000 -
$211,000 thi-ough May 2033; interest at 0.45%. $ 2.979,151 

ISetpension liability ~ governmental activities 1.096.221 

Total long-term debt for primary government $ 4.075.372 

The summary of long-term debt ti-ansactions for the primary government for the year ended 
December 31,2018, is as follows: 

Balance Balance Amount due 
Beginning End of within 
of Year Additions Reductions Year one year 

Public improvement 
revenue bonds $3,163,151 $ - $ 184,000 $ 2,979,151 $ 186,000 

Net pension Uabllitiy 961.272 252,512 117,563 1,096,221 ^ 

$ 4,124,423 $ 252,512 $ 301,563 .$ 4,075,372 $ 186,000 

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity 

The annual debt service requirements to amortize outstanding long-term debt of the 
primaiy government at December 31,2018 arc as follows: 

Sewer Revenue Bonds 

Yeai" Principal Interest DEQ Fees Total 

2019 186,000 12,988 14,431 213,419 
2020 188,000 12,146 13,496 213,642 
2021 190,000 11,296 12,551 213,847 
2022 191,000 10,438 11,598 213,036 
2023 193,000 9,574 10,638 213,212 

2024 - 2028 993,000 34,604 38,448 1,066,052 
2029 - 2033 1,038,151 11,734 13,037 1,062,922 

Total $ 2,979,151 $ 102,780 $ 114,199 $ 3,196,130 
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Bond Restrictions 

Sewer Revenue Bond - Series 2012 - Debt Service Fund to be used for tlie payment of 
principal and interest on outstanding bonds as they are due and payable. Monthly payments 
are to be equal to the sum of one-sixth of interest and administrative fees falling due on the 
next interest payment date and one-tweKth of principal falling due on the next principal 
payment date. The sum of $200,229 has been deposited for this requirement. 

Sewer Revenue Bond - Series 2012 - Reserve Fund to be used for the payment of principal 
and interest on bonds payable from the Bond Sinking Fund, as to which there would 
otherwise be default. The sum of $105,578 has been deposited therein for this requirement. 

Sewer Revenue Bond - Series 2012 - Depreciation & Contingency Fund to be used for 
the payment of extensions, additions, improvements, renewals, and replacements necessary 
to properly operate the system. Monthly depo.sits are to be equal to the sum of 5% of tlie 
net revenues of the preceding montli, provided the sum is available, until $130,000 has 
accumulated in Uie fund. Tlie sum of $13,280 has been deposited to date for this 
requirement. 

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN 

The Town of Livonia (the Town) is a participating employer a cost sharing defined benefit 
pension plans. Tliis plans is administered by the Municipal Police Employee's Retirement 
System (MPERS), Article X, Section 29(F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns 
the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of these plans to the State 
Legislature. Each system is administered by a separate board of Irustee.s. 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS) 

Plan Description 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) is the administrator of a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for any full-
time police officer employed by a municipality of the State of I-.ouisiana and engaged in law 
enforcement, empowered to make airests, providing he or she docs not have to pay social 
security, and meets the statiitoiy criteria. The projections of benefit payments in the 
calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active 
and inactive employees tln'ough the System in accordance with benefit terms and any 
additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 
Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211-
11:2233. 
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Plan Description (Continued) 

The System issues an annual financial report thsit is available to the public which includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. This report 
may be obtained by writing, calling, or downloading the reports as follows: 

MPERS: 7722 Office Park Boulevard | Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 | www.liimners.org 

Funding Policy 

Article X, Section 29(E)(2)(a) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature 
the authority to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially 
detemiined using statutorily established methods on an annual basis and arc constitutionally 
required to cover Uie employer's portion of the normal cost and provide for the 
amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer contributions are adopted by the 
Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee (PRSAC). 

Contributions to the plan are required and determined by State statute (which may be 
amended) and arc expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. Tlie contribution rates in 
effect for the year ended December 31,2018, for the Town and covered employees were as 
follows: 

Town Employees 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

Allempfoyees hired prior to 01/01/2013 and all 
Hazardous Duty employees hired after 01/01/2013 32.25% 10.00% 
Non-Hazardous Duty (hired after 01/01/2013) 32.25% 8.00% 
Employees receiving compensation betaw poverty 
guidelines ofUS Department ofHeaith 33.25% 7.50% 

The Town made contributions of $117,563, $111,916, and $92,370 during 2018, 2017, and 
2016, respectively. 
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At December 31, 2018, the Town reported a net pension liability of $1,906,221 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018. The 
Town's proporLion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town's 
long-tenn share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions 
of all participating employers, actuarially determined. Based on actuarial valuations as of 
June 30, 2018, the Town's proportion was .1297%, which was an increase of .0196% from 
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017 at .1101%. 

For the ycai- ended December 31, 2018, the Town recognized pension expense of $103,869 
related to the plan, non-employer contributions were $25,588. 

At June 30, 2018, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 
Outflows of Deferred inflows 
Resources ofResourccs 

Di^rences between expected and actual experience $ 4,942 $ 56,019 
Changes of assumptions 71,637 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pensbn plan investments 52,550 
Changes in proportbn and differences between Empbyer 

contributions and proportionate share ofcontributions 137,525 2,160 
&npbyer contrbutbns subsequent to the measurement 

date 63,414 -
$ 330,068 $ 58,179 

The Town reported $63,414 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the year* ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts 
reported as defeired outflows of resources and deferred intlows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in the pension expense as follows: 

December 31,2019 $ 111,719 
December 31,2020 86,906 
December 31, 2021 7,943 
December 31,2022 1.907 

$ 208.475 
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NOTK 8 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the 
assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 actuarial finding and valuation and were based on 
the results of an actuarial experience study for the period of July 1, 2009 thi-ough Jime 30, 
2014. 

A siumnajy of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liability as of June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Investment Rate of Return 
Expected Remaining Service Lives 
Inflation Rate 

June 30,2018 
Entry Age Normal Cost 
7.20%, net of investment expense 
4 years 
2.60% 

Salary increases, including inflation and merit; 

Yeai's of Service 
1-2 

3-23 
Over 23 

Salary Growth Rate 
9.75% 
4.75% 
4.25% 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based on an experience study performed by the 
prior actuary on plan data for the period July 1, 2009 througli June 30, 2014 and review of 
similar law enforcement mortality. The data was assigned credibility weighting and 
combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. This mortality was 
then projected forward to a period equivalent to the estimated duration of tire System's 
liabilities. Annuity values calculated based on this mortality were compared to those 
produced by using a set-back of standard tables. The result of the procedure indicated that 
the tables used would produce liability values approximating the approximate generational 
mortality tables. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected fiiture real rates of relmn 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate 
of return by weighting the expected Riture real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of 
rebalancing/diversification. The resulting long-tenn rate of return is 8.03% foi* the year 
ended June 30, 2018. 
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) 

Best estimates of arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included in 
the System's target allocation as of June 30,2018 are as follows: 

Asset Class Target Aitocation Long - Term Expected 
MFERS MPERS 

Equity 52% 3.58% 
Fixed Income 22% 0.46% 
Allemalives 20% 1.07% 
Other m 0.17% 
Total 100% 5.28% 

IrrOatbn 2.75% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 8.03% 

Discount Rate 

The projection of cash flows used to dcteiTninc the discount rate assumed that contributions 
from plan members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions 
from participating employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by 
PERSAC talcing into consideration the recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on 
those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The discount rate used 
to measure tlic total pension liability for MPERS 7.20% for the year ended June 30,2018. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the Town's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NFL) 
using the discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the Town's proportionate 
share of the NPL would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-
point lower or one percentage-point higher than the current rate used by each of the 
Retirement Systems; 

Current Discount 
1.0% Decrease Rate 1.0% Increase 

Discount Rates 6.20% 7.20% 8.20% 
Shares ofNct Pension Liability $ 1,540,494 $ 1,096,221 $ 723,493 
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; thefl of, damage to, and 
dcstioiction of assets; eirors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for 
wliich the Town carries conunercial insurance. There were no major changes in insurance 
coverage from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage in the current 
yeai* or in the past three years. 

Grants 

The Town receives federal and state grants for specific puiposes that are subject to audit by 
the gi'antor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the grantor 
agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. It is the opinion of the Town 
management that its compliance with the terms of grants will result in negligible, if any, 
disallowed costs. 

NOTE 10 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The Town offers all employees a deterred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457, permitting them to defer a portion of tlteir salary until 
future years. The Plan is administered by Massachusetts Mutual Financial Group, 
(MassMutual) who is also the Plan's Trustee. 

Participation In the Plan is optional. The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until tenninatiou, retirement, death, or an unfomseeable emergency. In 
accordance with the amended provisions of tlie Internal Revenue Code, aU amounts 
deferred under the Plan, including income attributable to those amounts, arc solely tlie 
property and rights of the participants and their beneficiaries. 

Mas.sMutual held Plan assets of $390,115 at December 31, 2018. 

The Town has implemented GASB Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. Under this statement 
governments that have no responsibility for iJic Plan and are not formally considered the 
Plan's trustee are not required to report the Plan in its fmancial statements. Since the Town 
Plan is held in a custodial account with a third party administrator, the assets and liabilities 
are not presented in the Town's financial statements. 
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NOTE 11 - COMPENSATION OF GOVERNING BODY 

During 2018, Council members received compensation as follows: 

Amount 
James R. Bergemn $ 6,025 
Gregoiy M. Jarreau 6,025 
John T. Jarreau 6,025 
Ron V. Leblanc 6,025 
Warren C. Pourciau 6,025 

Total $ 30,125 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF IHCVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended December 31,2018 

Variance -
Original Final positive 
Budget Budget Actual (negative) 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Sales $ 310,000 $ 300,000 $ 300,270 $ 270 
Video pokor 120,000 110,000 119,704 9,704 
Franchise 73,000 72,400 72,160 (240) 
Ad valorem 45,000 45,915 45,915 -

Beer 4,000 3,500 3,345 (155) 
Fines 605,150 728,950 711.683 (17,267) 
Licenses and permits 81,230 73,010 78,565 5,555 
Inlergovernmental 188,200 42,000 40,983 (1,017) 
Charges for services 16,455 17,968 22,458 4,490 
Investment income 20,568 31,953 27,528 (4,425) 

Total revenues 1,463,603 1,425,696 1,422,61! (3,085) 

EXl'ENDITURES 
Current function: 

General government 202,09! 193,202 196,500 (3,298) 
Public safety 915,888 933,790 931,020 2,770 
Highways and streets 193,230 186,138 175,646 10,492 
Health and welfare 500 325 259 66 
Culture and recreation 37,059 39,457 36,751 2,706 

Capital outlay 261,580 71,971 71,280 691 

Total expenditures 1.610.348 1.424.883 1.411.456 13,427 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (146,745) 813 11,155 10,342 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 13,620 13,618 13,618 -

Transfers out (120,000) (125,150) (124,844) 306 

Total other financing sources (uses) (106,380) (111,532) (111,226) 306 

Net change in fund balance $ (253,125) $ (110,719) (100,071) $ 10,648 

FUND BALANCE 
Beginning of year L570-399 

End of year $ 1,470,328 
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TOWN OF LTVONTA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPTLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the yeai- ended December 31,2018 

NOTE 1-BUDGETS 

Budget Policy and Budgetary Accounting 

A proposed budget is prepared and submitted by the Mayor to the Town Council prior to the 
beginning of each fiscal year. A budget summaiy and notice of a public hearing is published 
with the public hearing being conducted prior to the commencement of the budget year. 

The annual operating budget, prepared on the modified accrual basis, covers the general 
fund and enterprise fund (accrual basis). At the end of the fiscal year, unexpended 
appropriations automatically lapse. Budget amendments are approved by the Town Council 
and are included in the financial statements. 

In connection with budget preparation, a poilion of the unassigned fund balance of an 
individual fund may be designated for expcndilui-es of the subsequent year. Such 
designation represents the extent to which the fund balance is used to balance the 
subsequent year's operating budget of that find, as reflected in the legally adopted budget. 

Basis of Accounting 

All of the Town's funds budgets are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, which is 
described in Note 1 to the Town's financial statements for the yeai' ended December 31, 
2018. The Town's basis of budgetary accounting follows generally accepted accoimting 
principles. 
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TOWN OF LIVONJA, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARK 
OF NET PENSION LIABIITTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)(2) 

Exhibit B-2 

MPERS 

As of the fiscal year ended (2): 

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 
Employer's Covered Payroll 
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 

2018 2017 

0.1297% 0.1101% 

$ 1,096,221 $ 961,272 
$ 382,320 $ 328,704 

286.73% 292.44% 

71.89% 70.081% 

As of the fiscal year ended (2): 

Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
Employer's Covered Payroll 
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 

2016 2015 

0.1038% 

972,964 $ 
283,050 $ 

343.74% 

66,042% 

0.1049% 

821,468 
280,420 

292.94% 

70.730% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as available. 

(2) The amounts presented have a measurement dale of MPERS's prior June SOth fiscal year end. 

MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
47 



Exhibit B-3 

TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
LASTTKN FISCAL YEARS (I)(2) 

MPERS 

As of the fiscal year ended (2): 

Conlraclually Required Contribution 
Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

Employer's Covered Payroll 
Contributions as a % of Covered Payroll 

As of the fiscal year ended (2): 

Contractually Required Contribution 
Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required Contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

Employer's Covered Payroll 
Contributions as a % of Covered Payroll 

2018 2017 

% 125.460 $ 111,810 
125,460 111,810 

s - $ 

$ 398,348 $ 357,845 
31.50% 31.25% 

2016 2015 

$ 92,370 $ 87,542 
92,370 87,542 

$ - $ -

279,550 
33.04% 

288,433 
30.35% 

(1) Schedule is intended to show irtformation for 10years. Additional years will be displayed as available. 

(2) The amounts presented have a measurement date of the Town's fiscal year. 

MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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Kxhibit R-4 

TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION 
LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

For the year ended December 31, 2018 

NOTE I - NET PENSION LIABILITY 

Changes of Benefit Terms 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

No Changes. 

Changes of Assumptions 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

The investmenl rale of return and inflation rate decreased from 7.325% to 7.20% and 2.70% to 
2.60%, respectively. The long-term expected real rate ofrelurn decreased from 8.19% to 8.03%. 
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Exhibit C 

TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS AND 
OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

For the year ended December 31,2018 

Agency Head: Mayor Rhett Poiiricau 

Purpose Amount 

Salary 
Travel 

I'otal 

$ 12,025 
1,000 

$ 13,025 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT REQUIRED BY 
GOVERNMENTAL A VDITING STANDARDS 

For the year ended December 31, 2018 



E^ULK 
\17P%LER 

V V Certified Public Accountants • Bustnc: 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council, 
Town of Livonia, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the TOWN OF 
LIVONIA, LOUISIANA (TOWN) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively compromise the Town's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 31, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Tovwi's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on tlie effectiveness of the Town's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial repoiling was for the limited purpose described in 
the fu'sl paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given tliese limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
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We did identily certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and recommendations as item 2018-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As pail of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, wc performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other 
matters that is required to be reported under Governmeni Auditing Standards. 

The Town's Response to Findings 

The Town's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in tlie accompanying 
schedule of findings and recommendations. The Town's responses were not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in tlie audit of the financial statements and accordingly, we express no opinion on 
it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed In 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town Council and management, the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal and state agencies, and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other tlran tlicse specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:513, 
this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
May 31,2019 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND UECOMMENDATIONS 

For the year ended December 31,2018 

1) Summary of Auditors' Results: 

A) The type of report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified opinion. 

B) Significant deficiencies in internal control were disclosed by the audit of financial 
statements: 2018-001. 
Materia] weaknesses: None. 

C) Noncompliance that is material to the financial statements: None. 

2) Findings relating to the financial statements reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards: 2018-001. 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

For the year ended December 31,2018 

3) FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2018-001 Segregation of Duties 

Fiscal Year Finding Originated: 2011 

Condition: The Town does not have adequate segregation of duties over tlie financial reporting 
process. 

Criteria: Duties within the Town's financial reporting process should be segregated between different 
individuals to ensure effective internal control over financial reporting. 

Cause: The finding results from the small number of Town personnel involved in the financial 
reporting process, which restricts mcaningfiil segregation of duties. 

Effect: The Town does not have adequate internal control over financial reporting. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Town continue the current process of: 

• Obtaining the Mayor's approval for all Town disbursements, 
• The unopened monthly bank statement (including all cancelled checks) be reviewed by the 

Mayor, 
• The Mayor review and sign off bank reconciliations, 
• The Mayor and Town Council review the Town's financial statements, on a monthly basis 

witli comparison to budgeted amounts. Furthermore, a listing of monthly cash 
disbursements be reviewed with the monthly financial statements. 

Management's corrective action plan: Due to the size of the Town, the achievement of adequate 
segregation of duties is desirable to management but is economically impractical. However, the Mayor 
approves all disbursements of the Town within the range of the Council approved budget, except for 
those disbursements within llie designated Police Department budget which arc approved by the 
elected chief of police. All check disbursements are to have dual signatures per Town policy. 
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TOWN OF LIVONIA, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

For the year ended December 31, 2018 

2017-001 Segregation of Duties 

This finding has been reclassified as 2018-001. 
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Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

TOWN OF LIVONIA 
Livonia, Louisiana 

December 31,2018 



"EVULK 
LLC 

Certified Public Accountants • Business Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Members of the Council 
of the Town of Livonia and the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have perfoimed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Town of 
Livonia (the Town) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on tlie control and compliance 
(C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal 
period January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, The Town's management is responsible for 
those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Governmenl Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility 
of the specified users of tliis report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding tlie 
sufficiency of the procedures described below cither for the purpose for which this report has been 
requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings ai"e as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain the entity's written policies and procedures and report whether those written 
policies and procedures address each of tlie following financial/business functions (or 
report that the entity does not have any written policies and procedures), as applicable: 

a. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending tlie budget. 

b. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to 
the vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) 
documentalion required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 
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d. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and prepai'ing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

e. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving 
time and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

f. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring 
process. 

g. Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (I) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, 
(4) required approvers, and (5) monitoring cai'd usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

h. Travel and expense reimbursement, including (I) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

i. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-
1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor 
possible ethics violations, and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected 
officials, annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity's 
ethics policy. Note: Ethics requirements are not applicable to nonprofits. 

j. Debt Service, including (I) debt issuance approval, (2) EMMA reporting requirements, 
(3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable) 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal 
period, and: 

a. Obsei-ve whellier the managing board met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, or other 
equivalent document. 

b. Observe whether the minutes referenced or included monthly biidget-to-aclual 
comparisons on the General Fund and any additional funds identified as major funds in 
the entity's prior audit (GAAP-basis). 



c. Observe whether the minutes referenced or included non-budgetary financial 
information (e.g. approval of contracts and disbursements) for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask manage to identify the entity's main 
operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 
addition accounts. Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect 
the comesponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe 
that: 

a. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing dale (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

b. Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

c. Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more tlian 12 months from the statement closing date, if 
applicable. 

CoUeciions 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for 
each deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written 
policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or 
procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and 
observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a. Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

b. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for prepai'ing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/oflicial is responsible for reconciling 
collection documentation (e.g. prc-numbercd receipts) to the deposit, 



c. Kach employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiaiy ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

d. The eniployee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger 
and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fiind additions are not 
responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

6. Inquire of management tliat all employees who have access to cash are covered by a bond 
or insurance policy for theft. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 banl< accounts selected for procedure 
#3 under "Bank Reconciliations" above (select tlie next deposit date chronologically if no 
deposits wore made on llic dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if 
multiple deposits are made on the same day). Allernalely, the practitioner may use a source 
document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as 
a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book etc. Obtain supporting 
documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 

a. Observe that receipts arc sequentially pre-numbered. 

b. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

c. Trace the deposit slip total to tlic actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d. Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100). 

e. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding credit card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty 
cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that tlie listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if 
less than 5). 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved 
with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and 
procedui-es, inquire of employees about their job dutie.s), and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated such that: 



a. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase, and placing an order/making the purchase. 

b. At least two employees ai*e involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

c. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from 
adding/modifying vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically 
reviewing changes to vendor files. 

d. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives 
the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing 
payments. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 
disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

a. Observe that the disbursement matched the related original invoice/billing statement. 

b. Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Credit Catds/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, 
and P-cards (cards) for liie fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that 
the listing is complete. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 
5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or 
combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank 
statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a. Observe tliat there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purcliases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing, 
by someone other than the autliorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may 
constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawi-ason Act 
municipality); those instances should not be reported.)] 

b. Observe tliat finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 



13. Using themontlil)' statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the ti^ansactions (i.e. each cai'd should 
have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported 
by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). 

Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursement (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger 
is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a. If reimbursed u.sing a per diem, agree the reimbursement rate to those rates established 
either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
fvyww.gsa.govV 

b. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

c. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of tliose 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy 
(procedure #lh). 

d. Observe that each reimbur.sement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
otlter than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Contracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and constmclion activities that were initiated or renewed 
during the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection 
source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing 
is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, 
excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

a. Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

b. Observe that lire contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g. Lawi*ason Act, Home Rule Charter). 



c. If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment. 

d. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain 
the suppoiting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the 
invoice and related payment agreed to tlie terms and conditions of the contract. 

The above procedure, Item 15, was not performed in the current year due to no exceptions in 
the prior year report dated May 23, 2018. 

Payroll and Personnel 

16. Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
employees/officials, obtain related paid salaires and personnel files, and agree paid salaries 
to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials 
selected under ^16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and: 

a. Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not 
eligible to cam leave and does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, 
if the elected official is earning leave according to policy and/or contract, the official 
should document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

b. Observe tliat supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected 
employees/officials. 

c. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during tlie pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 

18. Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select 
two employees/orficials, obtain related documentation of tlie hours and pay rales used in 
management's termination payment calculations, agree the hours to the employee/officials' 
cumulate leave records, and agree the pay rates to tlie employee/officials' authorized pay 
rates in the employee/officials' personnel files. 

19. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, 
retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers' compensation 
premiums have been paid, and associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 



The above procedures, hems 16-19, were not performed in the current year due to no exceptions in 
the prior year report dated May 23, 2018. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above obtain ethics documentation from management, aiid: 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one 
hour of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

b. Observe that the documentation demonsti'ates each employee/official attested thi'ough 
signature verification that he or she has read the entity's etliics policy dming the fiscal 
period. 

Debt Service (excluding nonprofits) 

21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, obtain 
supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each bond/note issued. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, 
inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and 
payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt 
covenants. 

The above procedures, Items 21 and 22, were not performed in the current year due to no 
exceptions in the prior year report dated May 23, 2018. 

Other 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on 
the listing, obtain supporting docimientation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misapproprialion(s) to the legislative auditor and the disUict attomey of the paiish in which 
tlic entity is domiciled. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S, 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, firaud, waste, or abuse of public 
funds. 



TOWN OF LIVONIA 
Livonia, Louisiana 

SCHEDULE OF EXEPTIONS 

For ihc year ended December 31,2018 

Exceptions: 

No exceptions were found as a result of applying tlie procedures listed above, except as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures: 

The Town did not adopt policies and procedures until March 2019 which covered all components 
of budgeting, purchasing, disbursements, receipts/collections, payroll/personnel, contracting, 
credit cards, and debt services listed in the above statewide agreed-upon procedures. 

With regards to travel and expense reimbursement, the Town's policies did not address the dollar 
threshold for lodging until this component was added to the policy in March 2019. 

In terms of ethics, the Town's policy does not specifically address (2) actions to be taken if an 
ethics violation takes place and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected officials, 
annually attest through signature verification that they have read the entity's etliics policy until 
March 2019. 

Board or Finance Committee: 

2 (b) The minutes did not reference monthly budget to actual comparison before July 2018. 

Bank ReconcUiations: 

3 (d) For two of the five bank accounts selected, the Town had no documentation reflecting tliat 
reconciling items outstanding more than twelve months from the statement closing date had been 
researched. 

Collections: 

As stated above, the Town did not adopt policies and procedures over collections until March 
2019. 

Non'PayroU Disbursements: 

As stated above, the Town did not adopt policies and procedures over non-payroll disbursements 
until March 2019. 



Ethics: 

20 (a) Of the 5 employees selected for testing, one employee did not have documentation 
demonstrating the individual completed one hour of ethics training. 

20 (b) T he Town has no written policy on ethics until adopted in March 2019, 

Managements Response: 

The Council of the Town of Livonia concurs with the exceptions and is currently working to 
address the exceptions identified. The Town adopted policies and procedures in March 2019 to 
cover all aspects of budgeting, purchasing, disbursements, receipts/collections, payroll/personnel, 
contracting, credit cards, travel and expense reimbui'semcnt, etiiics and debt services listed in the 
above statewide agreed-upon procedures. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which 
would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified 
in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and tlie result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
May 31,2019 
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LLC 
Certified Public Accountants • Business Advisors 

The Honorable Mayor and 
Members of The Town Council 
Town of Livonia, Louisiana 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, and each major fimd of the Town of Livonia (the Town) as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, we considered the Town's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town's internal conbol. 

However, during our audit, we became aware of a matter that is and opportunity for the Town to strengthen 
internal controls and operating efficiency. We previously reported on the Town's internal control in our 
report dated May 31, 2019. This letter does not affect our report dated May 31, 2019 on the financial 
statements of the Town. 

We will review the status of this comment during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed 
this comment and suggestions with various Town personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss this 
comment in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to 
assist you in implementing the recommendations. Our comments ai'e summarized on Attachment A. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Town Council, management, the Louisiana 
Legislative Auditor, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statues 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Certified Public Accountants 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
May 31, 2019 

6811 Jefferson Highway • Baton Rouge, LA 70806 • (225) 927-6811 • Facsimile: (225) 932-0000 
712 N. Bumside Avenue • Gonzales, LA 70737 • (225) 647-6811 



Attachmerit. A 

OPERATIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS 

OR 2018-1 MULTI-YEAR BUDGETING 

Observation: The Town prepares its operating budget on a year* to year basis. The Town does not 
cuiTently utilize a multi-year budgeting process for its operating or capital budgets. Additionally, the 
following trends have been observed: 

® Over the last three fiscal years, total fund balance of the General Fund for the Town has decreased 
from approximately $1.8 million as of December 31, 2016 to $1.5 million as of December 31, 
2018. Additionally, unassigned fund balance, which can be used at management's discretion, has 
eroded from $1.2 million as of December 31, 2016 to $291,000 as of December 31, 2018. 

• The Town, at the discretion of the Town Council, has transferred approximately $50,000 per year 
of video poker revenues to the intemally maintained Municipal Complex Capital Outlay Fund. 
This fund balance, which is classified as assigned fund balance in the audit for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, has grown to $771,500. 

• The Town has appropriated between $120,000 to $169,000 over the past four years from the 
General Fund for payment of debt service requirements related to the Town's sewer bonds 
outstanding in the Public Utility Fund. 

• The Town's 2019 combined General Fund budget has an operating deficit of $334,000; if budgeted 
amormts are realized, the Town's combined General Fund would have a fund balance of 
approximately $1.2 million at December 31, 2019, of which $835,000 would be assigned to the 
intemally maintained Municipal Complex Capital Outlay Fund. This operating deficit wordd 
represent a decrease in fund balance of the Town's combined General Fund of approximately $1 
million dollars, or 43% in a span of fom- years. 

• Furthermore, if the same budgeted amounts for 2019 are budgeted for fiscal year 2020, the 
combined fund balance of Town's intemally maintained General Special and Sales Tax Funds (all 
Town unassigned fund balances) would have deficit fund balances of approximately $121,800, 
collectively, which may in effect cause the Town to be noncompliant with the State of Louisiana's 
Local Governmental Budget Act (La. R.S. 39:1301 -1315). 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Town pursue multi-year budgeting for financial planning 
purposes that aligns with a strategic operating plan embraced by Town leadership. In particular, the 
community needs of the Town continue to outpace available resources. With the consistent shortfall of 
revenues effecting the Town, the use of multi-year budgeting provides a critical means to establish 
priorities for the use of resources on a conceptual basis in contrast to isolated instances of decision-maldng 
on major items. 

The Town should consider preparing mrdti-year operating and capital budgets to compare projected 
resomces to anticipated expenditures. The key consideration in this process is not the development of 
budgetary amounts, but the identification of core concerns embraced by the Town's leadership and 
the use of its limited resources supplemented by additional funding specifically for infrastructure. 



Attachment A 
(Continued) 

The purpose of this planning will be to develop a financial plan to accomplish the following: 

® Estimate the levels of anticipated resources. The purpose will be to define the resources available 
to fund operations, capital outlay, and debt service. Furthermore, a sustainable funding source 
should be identified to address continued infrastructure efforts, 

• Compare expected operating and capital expenditures, including debt service, to anticipated 
available resources as determined above. During this process, the Town would also determine its 
service priorities with the related expenditures. From this determination, the Town would develop 
an operating and capital budget based on a priority system, 

® Develop policies for the establishment of fund reserves and utilization, 

® Development of long-range capital budgeting for infrastructur'e improvements. 

Management's corrective action plan: Town management endorses this recommendation. The 
matter is being explored by the Town Clerk's office and members of the Town's Council. The Town 
intends to review this matter during 2019. 


